
BOROUGH OF WOODLAND PARK 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MINUTES 

June 27, 2011 
 

 MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:30 P.M. by Vice Chairman Juzdan.   
 
OPEN PUBLIC MEETING LAW: THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER 
PURSUANT TO THE NEW JERSEY OPEN PUBLIC MEETING LAW, AND AS 
STATED IN NOTICES OF THE TIME, PLACE AND DATE PUBLICIZED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATUTE.  IT WAS INCLUDED IN A LIST OF 
MEETINGS FORWARDED TO THE HERALD NEWS AND THE RECORD AS 
REQUIRED NOTICES.  IN ADDITION, THIS LIST HAS BEEN POSTED IN A PUBLIC 
PLACE BY THE BOROUGH CLERK, AND A COPY OF THIS HAS BEEN FILED IN 
HIS OFFICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION.  PROPER NOTICE HAVING BEEN GIVEN, 
THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER AND THE CLERK IS DIRECTED TO 
INCLUDE THIS STATEMENT IN THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING. 
 
MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE:   RUSSEL JUZDAN, PHILIP DICRISTINA, RUTH 
PATTERSON, JOSEPH PASCRELL, TONY ORLANDO, JIM IANNIELLO, AND 
VINNIE DECESARE    
 
ALSO PRESENT –    JOHN FIORELLO, BOARD ATTORNEY 
                                   TOM SOLFARO, BOARD ENGINEER 
                                   BOB PERRY, BOARD PLANNER 
                                      
FLAG SALUTE                                
 
A motion to approve the minutes of the May 23, 2011 meeting was made by Mr. Decesare, 
second by Ms. Patterson and approved. 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
DOCKET # 10-03 – QUICK  CHEK – BROWERTOWN RD. – BLOCK 122 LOT 10 & 
10.02 – PRELIMINARY/FINAL SITE PLAN – USE VARIANCE – BULK VARIANCES 
– Application is hereby denied by a vote of  5 -2. 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
DOCKET # 11-05 – N. PLUAS – 11 WHITTAKER AVE. – BLOCK 100 LOT 11 – BULK 
VARIANCES 
 
Nancy Pluas, applicant, was sworn in.  She stated her mother needed a place to live and 
because of the high cost of living she could not afford to go anywhere else so they converted 
the garage to living space for her.  When they purchased the house all the work was already 
done and they only did the plumbing work.   She is requesting an approval for a full 
bathroom in the basement and to close off the garage door.  When the house was purchased 



the garage door had already been sealed.  The previous owner’s son lived down stairs.  What 
they did was brick the garage door because they had two floods.  The garage door was 
already sealed but the door is still there behind the bricks.  There is a regular door there that 
was there when purchase.   
 
Mr. Decesare asked who put in the plumbing in the basement.  Ms. Pluas said her family and 
friends put it in.    She did not know she needed permits as a first time home buyer.  She was 
worried about her mother and because everything was already done downstairs and the 
previous owner’s son lived down there she thought it was ok.  Mr. Decesare said if the 
application is not approved the plumbing can’t stay there.  Ms. Pluas said she is aware of 
that and hopes the application is approved.  She said she wouldn’t have done it if her mother 
had somewhere else to go.  Mr. Decesare asked if her mother could not go up the steps to 
stay in the apartment with her.  Ms. Pluas said it is a mother/daughter thing.  She is married 
and has her own family.   
 
Ms. Patterson asked if she was saying there was not enough room on her floor for her 
mother.  Ms. Pluas said there is room but her mother would prefer to stay in her own place 
for privacy.  She would like to take care of her mother. 
 
Mr. Ianniello asked if there was a door going outside from the basement.  Ms. Pluas said 
yes.  Mr. Ianniello asked if she was made aware that if you have an outside entrance from 
the basement the ordinance prohibits the installation of a bathroom.  Ms. Pluas said she did 
not know that but the door was already there.  Mr. Ianniello said its fine the door was there 
but what she wants to do is against the Master Plan of this town.   
 
Mr. Juzdan stated it is not a personal hardship that can come before this Board.  It’s a 
physical property hardship and that is the Board’s problem. He said he understands what she 
is saying and they all have parents.  Unfortunately the personal hardship is a major issue 
here because the Board cannot consider that in what they decide on.  He gave her an 
example such as if she wanted to build an addition and had a rock formation on the right 
side and a stream on the left side and you couldn’t buy the property behind you that would 
be a physical constraint and the Board would have to look at that because you cannot 
physically expand the property.   This is a personal hardship and there is a difference.  Ms. 
Pluas said she would consider it both in her point of view.   
 
Mr. Decesare asked if she thought about closing up the outside entrance to basement 
because then the bathroom would be legal.  They also have a garage space that has been 
closed in.   There are two separate issues here which are the bathroom in the basement with 
the outside entrance and the closing of the garage.  The work was done without permits.   
 
Mr. Ianniello asked if there is a kitchen in the basement.  Ms. Pluas said there was a very 
small one.  Mr. Ianniello asked how old her mother was.  Ms. Pluas said she is 67 years old.   
 
Mr. Dicristina asked if the kitchen exists in the basement.  Ms. Pluas said yes.  Mr. 
Dicristina asked if the kitchen was there when she purchased the house.  She said no. She 

 2



was not aware she needed a permit to do the work. Mr. Dicristina asked how she became 
aware of it.  She received a summons from Code Enforcement.   
 
Irma DiIorio, 3 Whittaker Ave., witness for the applicant, was sworn in.  Ms. DiIorio stated 
she lives in the home to the left of the applicant’s home.  She said the garage in Ms.Pluas’s 
house was closed up by the former owner.  They made it a bedroom with a door on the side 
of the house and a window with an air conditioner.  The son slept there and sometimes 
brought friends from college.  She knows the garage was closed from before they bought the 
house.  The garages used to get flooded.  When it rains a lot of water from Whittaker Ave. 
came down and into the garage.  They closed the first one on the left with a door and 
window and then they closed the other garage and made a room for the son to sleep.  Mr. 
Dicristina asked if she was in the house before Ms. Pluas owned it.  Ms. DiIorio said she 
was.  It was done about 12 to 14 years ago.   
 
PUBLIC OPEN – CLOSED 
 
Mr. Dicristina asked if she purchased the house to make it a mother/daughter home.  Ms. 
Pluas said she did not.  The work was done about 2 years ago on the kitchen and bathroom.  
She has owned the home for 7 years. 
 
A motion to deny was made by Mr. Decesare, second by Ms. Patterson and denied by a vote 
of  7 – 0. 
 
DOCKET # 11-06 – 1265 MCBRIDE AVE., LLC – 1265 MCBRIDE AVE. – BLOCK 122 
LOTS 2, 3 & 5.01 – PRELIMINARY/FINAL SITE PLAN – USE VARIANCE – BULK 
VARIANCES 
 
Richard Brigliadoro, attorney for applicant, stated the applicant is here tonight in regard to 
property at 1265 McBride Ave.  They are seeking approval from the Board to renovated the 
premises and locate a sporting goods store in front that would be 1670 sq. ft. and in the rear 
they would like to locate a shooting range that would be 8930 sq. ft.  They are here seeking a 
use variance because although the sporting goods store is approved in the zone the shooting 
range is not.  They are also seeking preliminary & final site plan approval and require 
approval of a certificate of occupancy over 5,000 sq. ft.  There are some minor variances 
they need in regard to front and rear yard setbacks.  They are not changing them at all and 
they are existing deficiencies.  They are also looking for variance relief in terms of signage.  
There is an existing free-standing sign of 40 sq. ft and they are going to replace it and they 
are looking to place to signs on the front building façade.   Under the ordinance the height of 
the sign can’t exceed 2’ and they are asking for 3’.  They will present testimony of the signs.     
 
Thomas O’Beirne, property owner, 29 Afterglow Way, Montclair, NJ.  Mr. O’Beirne gave 
some of his background for the Board.  He has developed a number of properties in 
Roseland, NJ and a number of industrial projects in Sparta.  He is the owner of HSBC Bank 
in West Caldwell.  He owns properties in Brick Township and is also a partner in the Chase 
Bank on Rte 23 in Cedar Grove.   
 

 3



Mr. O’Beirne stated he acquired title to this property in September of 2008.  He worked as a 
contractor for the prior owner who was Rebco Realty. There are 5 units on the site and 
presently 4 of them are occupied.  Creter vault is in a 4,200 sq. ft. building.  They 
manufacture casket liners.  They are located at the rear of the property.  Wilson Auto Body 
occupies 4,743 sq. ft. and is in the business of auto repair.  Screens & Fabricated Metals is 
the major tenant who occupies 38,989 s.f. and manufacture screen doors and aluminum 
products.  A martial arts studio occupies 2,560 s.f. in the front of the property.  The vacant 
former furniture store is 10,600 s.f.  The property is a little over 3 acres and buildings 
occupy 1/3 of the site and the rest is parking and storage.  The space that was previously 
occupied by the furniture store has been vacant for a year and they were in default for 2 
years.  They failed to pay the rent .They have advertised the space both privately and 
through a broker and they have not had an offer.  This is the space they are proposing to be 
occupied by the sporting goods store and the shooting range.   
 
Mr. O’Beirne said when he bought the property they made immediate repairs by replacing 
sections of the roofs and milled and repaired paving.  But for the most part the buildings are 
beyond minor cosmetic work and need either major renovation in the case of some of them 
and some of them are near or at the end of their life.  Almost every building on the site needs 
to be upgraded.  The problem they face as business people, developers and contractors is 
that the industrial uses in northern New Jersey are far and few.  Any business that competes 
with the internet is going to lose.  Route 10 in Livingston is a very good example of that.  
You have to look at a property and ask what can I do here to jump start this property.   They 
would like to drop everything and start fresh but the Fortune 500 companies are not out 
there waiting in line to come in.  So you limp it along with what you got with 4 really good 
tenants who pay their rent and you hope for something good.  The idea came up for the 
sporting goods store and the range because he is a sport shooter.  The firearms expert he 
deals with said he thought it would be a good place and there is a need for one in northern 
New Jersey.  As you hear there are a lot of facilities in New Jersey but there is a need for a 
quality facility.  He said his plan is to start with the 10,000 sq. ft. building, using the existing 
tenants and keep band-aiding them for the next few years.  As part of this they are going to 
clean up the whole front of the property.  The signs are coming off of the windows on the 
martial arts studio.  Everything is going to be plastered and the Board will hear from the 
architect and site engineer about what they are doing to the building.  Public Service is 
involved and they have agreed to clean up the old transformers and relocate the mass of 
utility poles that exist there now that prohibit parking.  Everyone is trying to make this place 
really look good.  A lot of this is generated by the excitement for the sport.  He would like to 
get this building up and running and while he is in the process of doing that deal with the 
next property because they all have to be dealt with.  Once he gets this cavity filled he can 
move on to the rest.  There are a lot of gray areas which include the DOT property that has 
been listed very expensive and no one even bid on at the last auction.  If they were to 
acquire that it would open up some unique possibilities to what they can do there.  This 
facility will bring some of the finest people in the state into town to utilize it.  It is there 
intent to give this place a cleanup.  The alterations to the 10,000 sq. ft. are going to be 
extreme but they are going to fix up the rest of the place too so as you come down McBride 
Ave. you are going to see a very attractive property.   
 

 4



Mr. O’Beirne stated the sporting goods store will be located in the front of the facility. It is 
presently operating in Lodi, NJ.  Luciano’s is the name of the business and they are here 
tonight.  They are going to sell a lot of inventory that will be attractive to a lot of people.  
They will sell firearms and ammunition but they will also sell safety equipment and a 
number of accessories, storage equipment and outdoor apparel.  They will sell tools, media 
and issue hunting licenses and license holders.  This store will be totally different from a 
Sports Authority type of store. 
 
Mr. O’Beirne referred to the police department report where they asked whether or not they 
would be providing electronic surveillance equipment on site.  He said the police asked that 
a camera system be installed on the exterior of the building.  They will agree not only to 
install a system on the exterior of the building but also the interior of the building.  They will 
have a tape running 24 hours a day to protect everyone involved.   
 
PUBLIC OPEN QUESTIONS FOR MR. O’BIERNE – CLOSED 
 
Ms. Patterson asked with Public Service coming in and moving things would they try to go 
green.  Public Service does have a lot of programs for businesses to save energy.  Mr. 
O’Beirne said yes and as a matter of fact they are meeting with Public Service at 9:00 a.m. 
tomorrow and anything they can do to get credits they are going to attempt to do.  Ms. 
Patterson said she remembers the site being American Light Alloys which was there for 
many many years.  All the buildings were chopped up and she did work there so she is 
familiar with the site. 
 
Mr. Juzdan said when someone hears of this type of business coming in the first thing that 
comes to mind is safety.  Obviously the store portion is going to be very small compared to 
the range area.  He asked what type of employees they hire to maintain and work the 
operation.  Mr. O’Beirne said in the range they will be NRA certified and for the most part 
they would prefer off duty law enforcement.  It is a good opportunity for them to earn extra 
money and they certainly have the experience so that is who they would want working there 
and they would be their first choice.  Mr. Juzdan said currently if you go by there it is pretty 
run down and there is debris in the back and the parking lot is chewed up.  He asked if all of 
that is going to be brought up to speed.  Mr. O’Beirne said yes.  As unattractive as it is and 
he apologizes for that it is in a sense pay for itself and other that the aesthetics it is not 
hurting anybody and it does function but it needs attention.  If one tenant is suppose to have 
15,000 s.f. and they are occupying 30,000 sq. ft. and they are not bothering anybody then in 
this economy he is going to let them thrive and survive.  He may choose not to say you have 
to back off and clean up your act.  If you speak to the fire or building inspector anything 
they have called on has been taken care of and there has never been a notice of violation.  
By his own admission he has been lacks because there has been no reason not to and there 
really may be too many vehicles there and he should get on Wilson and say clean it up.  He 
is in the back running his business and they leave him alone because they did not need the 
parking.  Now they are going to need more parking so it becomes his responsibility to clean 
this up and of course it is something they are going to want to do. 
 

 5



Mr. Juzdan asked if they ever have a member of the public coming in and wanting to rent a 
gun to shoot it that day if he would need a permit.  Mr. Brigliadoro said it was a great 
question but it will be answered by another witness.  Mr. Juzdan said safety in this respect is 
probably number one so as many people who could repeat the answer probably should.  
They will get to the firearms expert.  Mr. O’Beirne said he carries what is called a firearms 
identification card which he had to qualify for and any person coming in to do any thing 
with a firearm has to put that card on the table.  If they do not have the card they are advised 
to get the card and then come back. 
 
Mr. Decesare asked if they hook up the surveillance system if it could go directly to the 
police department.  Mr. O’Beirne said if they would like it to then they could do it.   
 
Mr. Dicristina asked if they are considering painting the buildings in the rear parking lot.  
Mr. O’Beirne said they could but they do need more than cosmetic.  They don’t know what 
is going to happen here and if this facility takes off they may need a restaurant to support it.  
Sunrise is leaving and now there would be no place for a hamburger or hot dog.  They may 
need something else but they just don’t know and there is a lot of gray area there because 
they are in a very difficult economy.   
 
Mr. Fiorello said they said it was a different type of sports store and from what they told 
them they are basically going to be for firearms, rifles and handguns and equipment and 
accessories that go along with that use.  He asked if they were not talking about a store that 
sold baseballs, bats, basketballs or hockey pucks.  Mr. O’Beirne said that Luciano’s at this 
time does sell those type of items including uniforms, but the plan here is not to sell that sort 
of thing right now.  There are some things that they sell that are not necessarily hand gun 
related like high intensity flashlights.  They are not going to sell footballs or jerseys or 
anything like that with an active range it would not be a good idea to sell those products. 
 
Mr. Juzdan asked about the separation between the retail and shooting range.  Mr. O’Beirne 
said it would be masonry construction filled with solid concrete and then sheathed in a 
ballistic material.  Mr. Juzdan asked if a father came in the store with his child if he would 
be completely shielded from the shooting range.  Mr. O’Beirne said he would.  You can’t 
deny that anything would happen so everything needs to be protected and the Board will 
hear that from the engineer as to how they are going to do it.   
 
Mr. O’Beirne said the store would be open Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m to 8:00 
p.m. and Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.   The range would be open 7 days a week 
from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.  Sundays would be shorter hours from about 8:00 to 6:00.   
 
PUBLIC – Questions for Mr. O’Beirne – CLOSED 
Paul Silverberg, architect, 152 Linden Lane, Princeton, NJ, was sworn in.  He stated his 
qualifications and was accepted as an expert.  Mr. Silverberg stated the site’s existing 
conditions.  The building in questions is 10,600 sq. ft. of space and single story.  As far as 
the work on the building they will not be increasing the footprint of the building.  The front 
of the building will house the sporting good function and to that end to help facilitate that 
use they will be adding two additional windows.  They will be adding awnings and a 

 6



handicapped accessible ramp by opening up the front entry stairs to the building.  The 
exterior shell of the building will be upgraded and improved by repointing the existing 
masonry where there have been some cracks and problems.  They will be providing a new 
stucco finish and a new paint finish over the stucco.  The building will receive a new high 
grade metal roof in lieu of the existing roof.  There will be an upgrade in replacing doors 
that do not function properly.  The remaining portion of the building on the inside will house 
the range and the supporting functions such as storage, locker and bathrooms.  There will be 
an upgrade to the gutters, leaders and waterproofing on the building as well.  It will come a 
long way from its current state once they are all done with the exterior improvements.   The 
drawings were provided to the Board as part of their submission.   
 
Mr. Juzdan referred to sections 1-10 on the plan and asked if that was counter space.  Mr. 
Silverberg said that was just an indication of the retail component with display cases.   
 
Mr. Silverberg referred to sheet A-2 which is the elevations of the building.  The front 
elevation gives an indication of the signage on the front of the building that is being 
proposed along with the new windows that are proposed.  It also shows the ramping that will 
provide entry to the front of the building.  There will be some mechanical equipment that 
still needs to be worked through in more detail that will serve the range because there are 
ventilation requirements.   
 
Mr. Orlando asked what the noise level was if he was walking down McBride Ave. while it 
was going on.  Mr. Brigliadoro said the engineer will be speaking about the noise level.  
 
Mr. Dicristina asked if the entrance to the two separate facilities was one in the same.  Mr. 
Silverberg said it is two gables that come together.  Mr. Dicristina asked if people coming 
into Luciano’s who don’t own guns but want to come in and shop would have people 
walking by them going to the range carrying guns.  Mr. Dicristina said they do have permits 
but if he brought his nephew would they be walking past him with guns.  Mr. Brigliadoro 
said there is a separation from the retail end and the range end of it and they will provide 
more testimony on it.  Mr. Dicristina said from the drawing the entrance to both are the 
same.  Mr. Brigliadoro said there is one entrance.  Mr. Dicristina said anybody can walk 
through the doors but if they are not legal they can’t shoot but anybody can come in and 
they can walk through the doors with guns.  He asked if it could change so there would be a 
separate entrance to the store and then into the range so if your in the store you are in a safer 
environment.  In the store they will be selling hunting knives which you do not need a 
permit for and archery equipment so people who do not have guns are going to be going in 
there.  He said he was concerned about that.  Mr. Silverberg said there is one entrance but as 
far as the operation of the facility he would defer to some of the testimony from experts here 
this evening.  Mr. Brigliadoro said they will address that.   
 
Mr. Juzdan asked if the Board had question on anything with the structure.  He asked if the 
current building that is there is a one level cinder block building.  Mr. Silverberg said yes 
with a steel frame on the inside. 
 

 7



Mr. Fiorello asked if Point Blank Range is the name of the business.  Mr. Silverberg said 
yes.  Luciano’s is the name of the sporting goods store.  They are two separate names but the 
same owner.  Mr. Fiorello asked if they would be dividing the two businesses.  Mr. 
Brigliadoro said there may be commonality of ownership between the two businesses.  Mr. 
O’Beirne said they would be two separate entities under the same ownership. 
 
PUBLIC – Questions for Mr. Silverberg  
 
Chief Tony Gallietti, Borough of Woodland Park, asked if they have one entrance because 
the law is that when someone enters with a weapon it has to be secured where the ammo and 
the weapon are separate in a sealed case and before they take the weapon out they have to be 
in the secured area where the range is.  The only person legally allowed to have a weapon on 
the side would be a police officer.  Mr. Silverberg said yes. 
 
Mr. Fiorello asked how the securing of weapons would happen.  He did not see it on the 
drawing.  Mr. Juzdan asked him to show how a customer would enter and proceed to shoot 
in the range. Mr. Brigliadoro asked if they would like to hear from the firearms expert.  Mr. 
Juzdan said this is a question of customer flow into the building.  Mr. Silverberg said 
architecturally there is one main point of entry into the building which is the lower left.  It is 
fair to say that it provides some measure of control as far as one point of entrance and you 
can see who is entering the facility.  He would prefer as far as the process of moving through 
and being able to access the range to have testimony of others who are experts as far as what 
that process represents. He said yes there is one door in.  Mr. Juzdan said this is not a candy 
store this is very important to understand because the Board all lives in this town.  Mr. 
Silverberg said there is a protocol so he would like the others that are familiar with that to 
explain it.  Mr. Brigliadoro said he can bring the firearms expert up now and go over all of 
it.  Mr. Juzdan asked if there were any more questions for the architect.   
 
Mr. Dicristina said there is a door behind the cashier that accesses the place where the 
shooters shoot from.  Mr. Silverberg referred to the plan and pointed out the door.  The door 
leads to where the shooters shoot.  Mr. Dicristina pointed out the bathrooms and said they 
have to come out into the retail area to go down the hall and use the restroom and then go 
back.  He said there is no cage or place where they deposit their firearm.  The store is going 
to be operating for most of the hours the range is going to operate.  There will be people 
shopping and some nosey people wanting to see what’s going on. He thought there should 
be a double set of doors or locking door where you just can’t walk in and out.  He felt where 
they placed the doors for the bathroom is wrong.  He thought there should be another door 
by the cashier counter.    He pointed out where he thought the area should be sealed.   
 
Mr. Silverberg said there is a protocol and they have experts here that can address that 
protocol specifically.   
 
PUBLIC OPEN – Questions for Mr. Silverberg – PUBLIC CLOSED 
 
Corporal Russel Hatzel, 45 Hillside Ave., Riverdale, NJ, was sworn in.  He stated his 
qualifications as a firearms expert and was accepted as an expert.  He referred to the fire 

 8



arms code in New Jersey and stated any one interested in taking up a shooting sport today 
must apply for a fire arms identification card.  The process for that is you need to complete 
the standard firearms application which is produced by the State Police.  They need to 
include a check for mental health records and during part of that for a new purchaser they 
will have their fingerprints taken.  The fingerprints do a nation wide criminal history on that 
individual.  The mental health records search is based on tax records through the county 
clerk.  They do a search going back 10 years.  If there is something more than that it will 
come up during the various records searches that are done.  They have to provide references 
that are not relatives.  They notify the employer and they are sent notification as to this 
person wants to acquire a NJ Firearms ID card.  It is an exhausted background check that 
takes about 30 days.  Someone who already possesses a firearms ID card and wishes to 
purchase a handgun goes through nearly the same procedure.  They fill out another 
application and have to have another mental health records check except now instead of 
getting fingerprinted they have to fill out state police form 2-12 A which does another 
criminal record search nationwide.  The procedure doesn’t change except they are not 
fingerprinted because they are already on file.  A firearms ID card allows you to walk into 
any licensed firearm dealer at the point of reference and purchase shotguns & rifles.  
Handguns in NJ are handled by the special permitting which is a paper permit.  In NJ you 
can only purchase one hand gun every 30 days.  Transporting of any firearm has to be done 
in a locked case in the furthest part of a vehicle.  Ammunition is handled the same way.   
 
Corporal Hatzel said he is a member and the treasurer for the Riverdale Police Pistol team 
which is a private range in Riverdale.  He said to address the single door issue you would 
design the range that way for greater control, especially if there is a retail component 
because you are going to want limited access to one way in and one way out.  People who 
are perspective purchasers are not going to be walking around with guns.  If they have the 
proper paperwork that has to be handed to the clerk first the manipulation of the firearm will 
be handled right there at the desk.  They will not be moving from point A to point B.  People 
coming to the range are going to need to sign in, check in, pay range fees, and handle their 
administrative business before they do that.  Creating multiple points of access creates an 
issue of safety and how do you control the flow of people.   Leaving the politics of firearms 
aside it is a much safer practice and is the best practice set up by the NRA and various 
shooting sports organizations if you have one controlled access.  An example would be 
when you run a training session, from a law enforcement prospective, when you are bringing 
weapons in it is always one way in and one way out because you need to account for the 
people and you need to account for the firearms.  Public ranges have even that much more 
degree of safety because you can have zero mistakes.  Safety is handled through the range as 
standard operating procedures and through range orientations.  Riverdale Pistol Team Safety 
Course was marked A-1 for ID and the Standard Operating Procedures by the NRA with a 
separate pg. 7 called appendix was marked A-2 for ID.  Corporal Hatzel described the 
standard operating procedures that deal with safety procedures and how they are going to 
handle certain situations and what the officer’s responsibilities are and what they need to do.  
The job of the range safety officer starts well before any shooter comes into the business to 
use the range.  They have to make sure the physical safety of the range is proper and all 
equipment works.  They would then move on to the safety and control of the shooters.  
Everyone goes through a safety course.  He referred to Exhibit A-1.  As a perspective 

 9



member of the police pistol range they have to sit through orientation that lasts about 2 
hours where they go over all the firearm safety rules which are universal to law 
enforcement, the military and civilians.  The 3 most basic is you always point a firearm in a 
safe direction, never put your finger on a trigger until you are ready to fire the firearm and  
you never load the firearm until it is ready to be used.  Those 3 things will avoid 99.9% of 
any incident.  Incidents on public or private ranges are extraordinarily rare.  Applications to 
join these ranges are growing.  There are currently 60 locations in NJ that have private or 
public ranges.  Since 2006 firearm ownership in NJ has increased from 5.l% to 15% of the 
population with women being the newest members joining the sport.  Many of these ranges 
run special days for women and their children to learn basic firearm safety and fire a gun for 
the first time.   It is done by certified instructors and the rules are always followed.  These 
are standard rules followed by ranges not only in NJ but throughout the U.S.   
 
Corporal Hatzel referred back to the firearms safety course from Riverdale, after they get 
through the administrative briefing there are range specific rules.  Firearms come in a secure 
case.  Ammunition is separated in a similar fashion.  Neither the firearm nor the ammunition 
is taken out in a public or ready room area.  You are only allowed to take out the firearm and 
the ammunition when you are in a shooting port and preparing to shoot at paper targets.  No 
one goes forward in the shooting port area when firearms are uncased.  There may come a 
time when a safety officer has to say seize fire and all firearms are to be made safe and cased 
because there is a problem down the end.  From there standard procedure is everyone steps 
out of ports and they are not allowed to pickup or manipulate the firearms in any way.  The 
final part of the course is they have to shoot a basic qualification course.  He described the 
course.  They don’t have to hit the bull’s eye but they must hit the paper target.  If they fail 
to do that they get remedial training right there and then at no cost to them.  They are given 
another opportunity and to his knowledge there has never been a time when someone has not 
made it through.  If there were they would tell them they need more training and need to 
come back. 
 
Corporal Hatzel said each range is built differently and within the confines of the structure 
of the range you will only use certain types of firearms and certain calibers.  Some ranges 
are designed for handguns only and some will accept small caliber rifles and shotguns.  
People are required to wear both eye and hearing protection.   The ventilation systems are 
built to take any gun powder or lead dust that may or may not be in the area.  They are as an 
industry moving away from lead base issues.  There are companies beginning to make green 
ammunition designed for ranges but they are multiple years away from that.   
 
PUBLIC OPEN – Questions to Corporal Hatzel  
 
John Balonze, 1255 McBride Ave., said he is not familiar with the project.  He asked if he 
could have a copy of what they were describing.  Mr. Fiorello asked what he was asking for.  
Mr. Balonze said he would like information.  Mr. Fiorello said copies can be made for the 
next meeting.  Mr. Juzdan asked if he could look at the application in the office.  Mr. 
Fiorello asked if he has taken a look at it.  Mr. Balonze said no. Mr. Fiorello said he got a 
notice and asked if he came here to look at the application.  Mr. Balonze said he got the 
notice late because he was away.  Mr. Fiorello said he can come to the building and look at 

 10



the application and he can pick up copies of the exhibits they just received.  Mr. Fiorello 
asked if they were moving them into evidence.  Mr. Brigliadoro said yes and he can make 
his copies available.  He submitted them to Mr. Balonze.  Mr. Balonze said he will look at 
the application.  Mr. Brigliadoro asked if they were ruling not to make a decision this 
evening.  Mr. Fiorello said he did not rule on anything and did not know how far they would 
get yet.  They had another hour and half this evening.  Mr. Juzdan said they would proceed 
to 9:00 and take a break and then make a decision.   
 
Mr. Dicristina said Corporal Hatzel noted 60 ranges and asked how many have a store in the 
front.  Corporal Hatzel said to his knowledge at least 5 including the one in Belleville.  Mr. 
Dicristina asked if he was familiar with the design of that store and range.  Corporal Hatzel 
said it is similar but there are some differences but it is still a controlled entrance.  It would 
be controlled by the number of units in the range.  Mr. Dicristina said he understands the 
point of view of a single entrance and also very well about how retail businesses work.  
People coming into ranges with regularity and appointments with only 13 lanes there are 
some predictability and some flow but people coming into a store are not as controlled.  He 
was concerned about using the restroom and leaving the range and entering the retail area.  
Mr. Hatzel said under NJ law having gun lockers for people to utilize is a gray area.  He 
would not recommend it.  Using Riverdale’s setup from the firing line if people want to use 
the restrooms they have to come out of the firing line and out of the actual range and into a 
ready area or open meeting room.  The procedure is to secure the firearm cased and case up 
the ammunition which is not left unattended.  Most people who go to the range have 
shooting buddies.  Someone is there to physically make sure the firearms are not moved.  
Just like you would not leave a car running you would not leave a firearm laying around.   
The type of people who would be coming into the retail section would be people trying to 
get interested in that type of individual sport.  The shooters would probably be buying the 
ammunition there and not transporting it.  There is range protocol that shooters who enjoy 
the range follow because they know the liability and they are not going to take chances.  Mr. 
Dicristina said the shooters are not his concern he said for example a bunch of teenagers are 
walking down the street and they come into the retail store.  He doesn’t know if there is a 
buzzer to get into the range area or not but they know it is there.  He asked what prevents the 
teenagers from trying to grab a gun.  Corporal Hatzel said the firearms are not open to be 
grabbed the best practice is to have all handguns in a locked case.  The case is not movable 
and are designed specifically for that.  Rifles and shot guns would be out visible but they are 
held together by cable locks through the trigger mechanism.  You would have to defeat the 
clerk and then defeat the actual lock to get to the rifles or shot guns.   For the cases best 
practice is to have the very heavy glass which is extremely difficult to break and those 
firearms are secured there through a lock.  Some retail dealers add trigger locks to that but 
that is a decision the retailer makes.  Once they have them in those secured hard cases they 
are complying with NJ law.  To his knowledge there has not been a theft of a firearm with 
the scenario described by grabbing a gun.   
 
Mr. Ianniello asked how many employees does an operation like this undertake as far as 
security goes.  Corporal Hatzel said security is handled primarily through the physical 
control of firearms. You do not need armed security in a gun shop.  It is not required and 
sometimes could be a greater threat.  Firearms are generally secure and best practice is 

 11



through mechanical devices.  The presence of a person does not dissuade someone from 
making an attempt.  If someone wants to do a bad thing no level of security can prevent it.  
NJ does not have a history of that. 
 
Mr. Juzdan asked just to answer Mr. Ianniello’s question how many people will be in the 
firing range as employees.  Corporal Hatzel said there would be a minimum of one as a 
range safety officer and you might have a store clerk to handle the administrative stuff.  The 
flow as to shooters unless it’s an organized shoot they do not have an overflow problem.  
Mr. Juzdan asked if there would be someone employed in the firing range and not just a 
clerk.  Corporal Hatzel said there should be but that would be a business decision after 
receiving approval.  Mr. Juzdan asked if there is a state inspection.  Corporal Hatzel said 
Ray’s Sporting Goods which is now closed had a contract with the state when it came to 
ammunition for law enforcement.  They had a retail section where you went showed your ID 
paid for range time and they had set ups monitored via video.  They had range officer’s 
present but they did not necessarily have to be present in the range while it was being 
utilized.  That is accepted as best practice throughout the country. 
 
BREAK – Call to order 9:20 p.m.- Roll call, all present. 
 
Mr. Decesare said there are 13 stalls and it is not required by law for the range officer to be 
in that part of the facility.  Corporal Hatzel said it is not required but this facility will have 
one.  There will be a range officer there anytime the range is open.  He thought there was 
some confusion as to the security of this situation. He pointed out the 13 shooting points 
they are talking about on the plan.  The question is the door and that is an exit only door 
controlled by the range officer.  If someone was going to use the facilities they would case 
up their firearm and ammunition and the range officer would be notified they are still 
actively shooting in a port but need to use the facilities.  The range officer then would 
acknowledge and have to let the person out.  It is one way out and they cannot come back in 
that door.  There is somebody physically observing all the time.  The range officer will 
physically see them lock every thing up and there will also be a video so they can see that no 
one has an uncased firearm.  Once they use the facility they will again have to go back in the 
main door so no one is walking around with uncased firearms.  They will come back in and 
the range officer will acknowledge that they are back and let them go back and uncase 
everything and resume shooting procedures.  Mr. Decesare said he thought it was going to 
be a business decision whether they would have an officer there.  Corporal Hatzel said he 
has been told the business decision is to have an officer there.  He clarified that there will be 
two people working the retail section and one range officer present anytime both are open.  
If the retail is closed there will be 2 range officers present.   
 
Corporal Hatzel said he is certified as a range officer.  They must complete approximately 
40 hours worth of range training.  They go through a basic safety course and a teaching 
course.  They will get a basic firearm instructors course in the discipline of handgun, shot 
gun or rifle depending on what they are specializing in.  Most get all three.  They also have 
to go through the range officer safety course which is an 8 hour course.  All the training for 
one specialty is about 40 hours of training.  They take a test at the end of every course.  
They must pass the basic test to move on to another course.   

 12



Corporal Hatzel said best practice is established through the NRA.  Law enforcement and 
the military utilize many of the setups developed by the NRA.    That comes into how many 
shooters allowed in a shooting area at any time.  Here there are 13 ports, if you have an 
organized shoot and you have 50 shooters not all 50 are going to be allowed into the actual 
shooting range at the same time.  They will be done in relays.  One group will come in, 
uncase the firearms, complete what they need to do and recase them before the next group is 
allowed in.  There will be no overflow of one group walking in while another is walking out. 
Best practices also go in to how to develop the range and range commands are standardized 
for safety purposes.   
 
Mr. Juzdan asked if there was a state board or organization that oversees this type of 
operation.  Corporal Hatzel said they have to be in compliance with both NJ Firearms Law 
and the law established by the Bureau of Alcohol and Firearms.  There are controls within 
the range that they have to meet.  If a firearm is illegal in NJ it is illegal to bring it to the 
range.  NJ law supersedes.  They must meet OSHA standards in terms of operation and 
safety.  The liability insurance for a range is extreme.  The standards setup by following 
NRA best practices is the gold standard which all organizations are based on.   
 
Mr. Orlando said he is not that familiar with firearms except for the military.  He felt they 
allayed some of his fears that they are not having someone walk down McBride Ave 
carrying a gun.  He asked if he could tell him what type of firearms would be used at the 
range.  Corporal Hatzel said the range is designed to handle all firearms that are legal in NJ. 
He said there are no machine guns legal in NJ or the US except with special permits that are 
not issued to the public.  Range practices and SOP’s would limit the amount of ammunition 
allowed to be loaded into any particular firearm.   Mr. Orlando asked if he was walking by 
the building what he would hear.  Corporal Hatzel said the engineer would give him a better 
example of that but you are not going to hear gunfire because it is controlled through the 
structure and design of the building.  There are other people here to answer the question but 
would you hear a noise yes but the building is designed to control that.   
 
Ms. Patterson asked when they are staging the competition shooting where you have teams 
if the guys with downtime and guns are away where do they go.  Corporal Hatzel said in a 
competitive environment there is a safety officer where all firearms would be checked in and 
registered.  If they are going to shoot a revolver course there could be two teams with 10 
people.  Team one is going to go.  Team two is with their firearms in a ready area that is 
controlled.  Mr. Juzdan asked where they would be in this range.  Corporal Hatzel said in 
this situation it can be done right in the retail area.  You would have a team captain and 
safety officer who could stand around the ten secured firearms in a designated corner.    Ten 
firearms do not take up a great deal of space.  Someone is always designated as the safety 
officer even within the teams along with the range officer.  The guns are secure at all times 
by their owners or designated safety officer at all times. No one walks away from an 
uncased or cased firearm. 
 
Mr. Ianniello asked when they leave the range if the firearm is secure in a locked case.  
Corporal Hatzel said that was correct.  The range officer booth could be a place to store the 
weapons which would be even more controlled.  If the Board required the weapons would 

 13



be stored in a secured area they would have no problem agreeing to. A case and cage is 
already provided in the retail section.  Mr. Juzdan said he is not a principal of the business 
but it would be no problem for the owner to agree to it if he chose to.  The Board could 
make it a condition of approval. 
 
Mr. Fiorello asked if he was familiar with the Wayne Township range.  Corporal Hatzel said 
he is familiar with the police range in Wayne.  Mr. Fiorello asked if he was anywhere near it 
when it is being used.  Corporal Hatzel said yes.  Mr. Fiorello said you can hear it outside.  
Corporal Hatzel said yes but you do not hear gunfire you hear a loud noise that is not the 
same as gunfire.  Mr. Fiorello said he lives within a mile of the range and you do hear shots.  
Corporal Hatzel said he disagrees.  Mr. Fiorello said he was just saying what he hears.  
Corporal Hatzel said as an example the Riverdale range has been there since 1970 in a 
residential area and to his knowledge they have had no noise complaints.  Mr. Fiorello said 
it may be it is down in a hollow and if you live above it you hear it.  Mr. Fiorello asked 
about the Riverdale SOP and if it is approved by any organization. Corporal Hatzel said it is 
approved by the NRA.  Mr. Fiorello asked if he said there are 60 ranges in NJ and if some 
are open to the public and some are not.  Corporal Hatzel said yes, he believe there are a 
dozen public ranges in NJ currently with at least 3 or 4 more being planned.  He thought the 
closest one to this site would be Belleville or Newark.  In the area of Passaic, Bergen & 
Morris counties there are six ranges open to the public.  Corporal Hatzel marked the ranges 
that are open to the public and the list was marked A-3.   There are 25 ranges that are not 
opened to the public in North Jersey.  He does not know of a private range club that does not 
let the police department utilized their facility.  Mr. Fiorello asked if the owner would agree 
to a condition of approval he would have a safety officer all the time and when retail was 
closed there would be two.  Corporal Hatzel said the owner agreed during the break.   
 
Mr. Fiorello asked how many visitors to the range they would expect.  Corporal Hatzel said 
he can’t answer to this facility but he can tell the Board what they experience in Riverdale.  
Riverdale they have 100 regular members and they have roughly 300 associate members.  In 
any given week there might be 100 people who come by to use the range, either shooting by 
themselves or competition.  It includes any competition that would take place.   
 
Mr. Dicristina asked how many ranges are located on a main thoroughfare in a very dense 
commercial district such as this one.  Corporal Hatzel said the ranges in Belleville, Newark, 
Ringwood, Jersey City, Bayonne and Paterson are all in urban areas surrounded by industrial 
and residential.  Mr. Dicristina said this area is primarily commercial with a supermarket, 
banks and a florist shop.  The site is industrial but all around it is commercial uses with lots 
of people and action.  Corporal Hatzel said Belleville has a sandwich shop right across the 
street, there is a school right down the road with a great deal of light commercial industry in 
that area.  Bayonne there is a grocery store 100 yards away.  Newark is in the middle of an 
environment that is all stores.  Fairfield is similar except they have strip mall type of uses.  
Mr. Dicristina asked how many incidents have happened in any of these facilities in the last 
few years.  Corporal Hatzel said to his knowledge there have been none.   
 
Mr. Brigliadoro said his client has asked him to inform the Board that the Woodland Park 
police officers would have use of the range at no cost.   

 14



Mr. Brigliadoro submitted photographs of the Riverdale facility.  They were marked A-4 to 
A-10.  Corporal Hatzel described the photos of the interior of the Riverdale range. Mr. 
Juzdan noted that this is Riverdale and has nothing to do with what they are doing here.  
Corporal Hatzel stated the range design here would be similar to the Riverdale facility.  Mr. 
Fiorello asked if the range design and shooting ports would be designed in the same way as 
shown in the photos.  Corporal Hatzel said yes and it is the company’s general state of the 
art system.   
 
Mr. Dicristina asked where the training would take place at this facility. Corporal Hatzel 
said the training can take place on the range with proper controls.  If it is going to be a 
training you can allow training aids in that area where you have an instructor.  The issue 
there would be the control of ammunition.  If it is a training session no ammunition would 
be introduced into the shooting area until that section of the training came forth.  There 
would absolute controls over ammunition for safety purposes.  Also training with firearms is 
not always conducted with live firearms.  There are replicas designed so you can’t possibly 
load them with real ammunition.  They are designed specifically for training.  Mr. Fiorello 
asked if the training officer be facing the ports with everyone looking at him so he or she 
can explained the training.  Corporal Hatzel said you will have a range safety officer in the 
booth and the trainers would be out there with the shooters.  Mr. Fiorello asked if they 
would be in front looking at the ports.  Corporal Hatzel said generally if he was the trainer 
the students would be to his left and right behind him and he would be explaining things 
with the training firearm pointed in a safe direction because you want to reinforce those 
habits.  You do not have to necessarily face the audience to teach firearms.  They will be left 
and right of you as you explain it.  There would be no reason to face the class.  
 
Chief Galietti, Chief of Police of Woodland Park, was sworn in.  Chief Galietti stated he 
heard about the range and was a little concerned about traffic, public safety and noise.  The 
idea of having guns come in to town set him back a little but he had to sit down and evaluate 
each situation.   He did meet with the applicant because he did have a lot of questions.  After 
talking with them he felt comfortable with the location and felt it would bring in 
professionals who use weapons.  He went over all the security measures they would propose 
and he was impressed with the fact they were going to have off duty officers who are trained 
as range officers.  They not only know the law but are trained in situations if they do arise.  
He felt comfortable there would be some officers on the spot.  He does not anticipate any 
problems and does not recall any problems in this area.  It is his responsibility to provide 
safety for this community and after meeting with them he wanted the Board to know he is 
very comfortable with this project.   He felt it would be a good thing for the community by 
bringing professional people into town.  It will help the community as a whole, it will 
renovate the area and be more appealing to the eye.     
 
Mr. Juzdan asked where our police officers shoot at this time.  Chief Galietti said they 
currently qualify four times a year which is a state law.  They utilize the Passaic County 
Sheriff’s Dept. range in Garret Mountain.   He said the positive side for the police 
department with this range in place he hoped it would encourage his officers and 
surrounding town’s officers to shoot more often.  A trained officer is the best thing you can 
have in a situation.  A lot of guys would only shoot 4 times a year and he hoped this would 

 15



make them want to shoot more often.  Mr. Juzdan asked where they go other than the 4 
times a year.  Chief Galietti said there are not that many in the area so a lot of them only 
shoot 4 times a year to qualify.  He is a father of five and one of the biggest things he did 
with his kids was make them understand his gun.  A father may bring his kid for a safety 
lesson because the range is close to home.  He felt this is a positive for the community 
because it will be safe and what they showed him was state of the art equipment.    
 
PUBLIC OPEN - QUESTIONS for Chief Galietti – PUBLIC CLOSED 
 
Mr. Fiorello asked if the Garret Mountain site was on the list.  Corporal Hatzel said no but 
the range is not open to the public.   
 
Paul Darmofalski, engineer & planner, was sworn in.  He stated his qualifications and was 
accepted as an expert witness.  He has a lot of familiarity with the Riverdale range.  It has 
been in existence since 1970 and 10 years ago it had a major fire.  After the fire they applied 
to the Board of Adjustment because the grandfathered use disappeared.  He served as the 
planner and engineer for that Board.  He had to make sure the facility met standards for 
environmental, noise and building safety.  He will be testifying to those standards for this 
site.  OSHA is definitely a requirement for both the employees and users of this facility.  
They have very specific requirements for the air handling and environmental end of things.  
They have the EPA which is a federal regulation this facility has to comply with for 
environmental.  They have OSHA for noise in addition to the environment and the NJDEP 
for all the environmental and noise levels.  Applicable guidelines in addition to the standards 
is the NRA the bible and the National Association of Shooting Ranges is another guideline 
for constructing facilities like this.  They have the National Institute for Occupational Safety 
and Health which dictates environmental and air movement concerns.  There are two 
branches of the federal government, the US Navy has done extensive research and published 
guidelines on the facilities along with the Army Corp of Engineers.  Mr. Darmofalski said 
the interior of these buildings are a very highly regulated design that are designed for the 
ballistics that are going to be shot there.  The ballistics would dictate the thickness of the 
walls.  All the walls on 3 of the sides would be masonry filled solid with concrete and will 
be a minimum of 6” thick.  Most probably because of the age of the facility there would be 
an 8” masonry.  The floors are concrete and the ceilings are a baffled system which is an 
angled piece of steel that is going to be 3/8” thick.  It is also then fitted with wood and then 
fitted with a sound reducing element.  The walls are fitted with a sound absorbing material.  
The facility is highly regulated with 13 ports.  There will be a range safety officer 
supervising this site at all times.  There is also a bullet trap at the end where you are firing.   
The bullet trap is angled so there are no ricochets and deflects the bullets down.  Mr. 
Darmofalski said the sound is regulated by OSHA so it is an 80 decibel level. The 
employees are regulated so they can only come into the work facility for a certain amount of 
time if the decibel level exceeds that. Employees are expected to use both ear plugs and ear 
muffs but he believes the patrons are not required to have both under the OSHA regulations 
because they are not subject to the same time periods.  OSHA requires under the standard 
operating procedure that the decibel level be tested every day and the employees be 
monitored for hearing loss.  The building design also has an air handling system that creates 
a negative pressure in the room.  Negative pressure is similar to a bathroom that has an 

 16



exhaust fan running at all times that is always taking air out.  The regulations by OSHA, 
DEP and all of the guidelines require they have a minimum velocity of air of 50’ per minute 
when shooting a fire arm.  It may sound like a lot but is only ½ mile per hour which is a 
gentle breeze but it has a positive away from the shooter toward the target.  It is controlled 
by the air handler that they have to be able to exhaust more than 10% of the air they are 
bringing in.  This is a system that is pretty sophisticated.  The exhaust system also has a 
series of filters with the last filter being a hepa filter that would have a removal rate of 
99.97%.   The purpose for that is there are air born pollutants that happen when you fire a 
firearm.  It is lead based and they are trying to get away from lead but that is what the 
standards are right now.  The intention is from the safety and environmental end of it they 
are pulling the air away from the users and filtering it. When that filter stops working and 
the way you measure that filter when it stops working is it is kind of like an air conditioner 
filter you know when it needs to be changed or cleaned it stops pulling air. There are actual 
sensors on these filters and when it’s done it is considered a hazardous material and disposed 
of properly under the DEP regulations.  It is a highly regulated exhaust system and air 
handling system.  From that end of it all of that is done by guidelines that are put out by the 
government and checked by our local governments.  OSHA has the ability to come in at any 
time and monitor the facility.  On a 3 months basis you have to check yourselves and go in 
and check the filters and make sure everything is operational.  There is a log that has to be 
checked and either passed or modified every 3 months.  This is similar to gas stations that 
have to have a daily log of their fuel.  It is subject to an audit and they can shut you down at 
any time if you are not following the rules.  It is their job to follow the rules and not 
someone coming in daily to check you.  The interior of the building is designed from a 
structural end of it so that there are no ricochets and the bullets stay where they are supposed 
to be.  There is a bullet trap at the end of the range.   
 
Mr. Darmofalski referred to exhibit A-9 and A-6 which show a red fabric.  He submitted a 
swatch of the fabric which is a self healing fabric so the bullet actually goes through it and 
the hole closes back up.  He didn’t believe it and it was his job as the borough engineer to go 
in and inspect after a year to see that it worked and in ten years they have gone through 3 
curtains.  The Board heard the testimony that they are probably going through about a 100 
users in a week if you take that times 10 years it would be the length of time of this fabric.  
This fabric is both sound and also collects the bullets as they pierce through the fabric it gets 
collected in the venetian blind steel behind it and goes into a bullet trap.  Every firing range 
has those elements, you don’t have to have this fabric but it is a big state of the art material.  
It is his experience it does work very well.  He submitted a sample to the Board.   
 
Mr. Darmofalski said with sound control the interior of the building must meet OSHA 
requirements and the exterior of the building must meet DEP requirements.  They have 
sound levels that are a requirement in any commercial zone that during the day you can’t 
exceed 65 decibels at the property line and at night you cannot exceed 50 decibels at the 
line.  If you are up against a residence it is 50 decibels at all times.  They took sound 
readings from the Riverdale facility which is a similar type facility.  The noise level outside 
the building that is properly designed is negligible.  The ambient noise exceeded the noise 
from the buildings themselves when there was shooting going on.   He does not know what 
is going on in Wayne because he is not familiar with the facility.  They are also subject in 

 17



Riverdale to the requirements of the Pequannock Health Dept.  They have certified sound 
experts with sound meters and they have done sound readings and seen they have met every 
standard.  There are homes on one side of the Riverdale facility about 150’ away and there 
are ball fields.  They have not had a complaint in 10 years since it has been rebuilt but prior 
to that there were some complaints but because of the rebuilding with today’s standards the 
noise was properly depleted.  They don’t know the final design for the interior of this 
building.  The ballistics have to be selected by determining exactly what ammunition is 
going to be used.  If in fact what his client is asking for is approved it will  be a good design.   
 
Mr. Darmofalski said there are employees who will wear special masks which is a filtered 
mask along with a respirator while doing their work to meet this requirement.  They will be 
in disposable suits because lead is important to control.  The employees of this facility will 
be monitored for lead under the health requirements every 3 months also.  There are some 
regulations such as the daily maintenance.  You vacuum  the bullets.  The baffling system is 
inspected daily.  
 
Mr. Darmofalski said he could only conclude that with his ten year history with the 
Riverdale pistol range it has been nothing but a positive.  The Riverdale Police Chief wrote a 
letter that talks about the history of the police range and the benefits to the municipality 
when a shooting range is in town.  Mr. Fiorello said the letter is objectionable because it is 
hearsay.  The Chief would have to be present.  Mr. Darmofalski said the town’s 
professionals are going to have a very interesting time as a learning experience on this 
project because it is a very specialized, unique fitting out of a facility.  It is a retail facility 
and is considered under the codes as a storage type use but it is a special retro fit and a 
highly specialized and regulated facility and they are safe.  They have no incidents 
whatsoever in the Borough of Riverdale with noise, bullets or anything along those lines. 
 
PUBLIC OPEN– Questions for engineer/planner  - PUBLIC CLOSED 
Mr. Orlando asked what happens to the bullets and ammo that is shot. He asked if they 
recycled it.  Mr. Darmofalski said the brass is recycled, the lead is sent under Hazmat 
disposal.  The Borough would have no involvement in getting rid of the ammunition.  Brass 
has a value on the street so they will take the casings and recycle them.  The disposal of the 
lead like bullets in the trap or anything that is vacuumed up are disposed of under all 
regulations of the DEP.  There are standards they must comply with to dispose of the lead 
through the State and Federal regulations. 
 
Mr. Dicristina asked about the people working in the facilities attached to this space.  He 
asked how loud 50 decibels were.  Mr. Darmofalski said his voice exceeds 50 decibels right 
now.  The ambient noise for the air handling units will have to be toned down so they can 
meet the 50 decibels.  A standard roof top unit running at this time of the year can exceed 50 
decibels.   
 
Mr. Juzdan said the architectural drawings that they have in front of them do not specify 
these specialized air handlers and such.  Mr. Darmofalski said they do not.  Mr. Juzdan 
asked why not.   He said they came up here and talked about Riverdale but this is Woodland 
Park.  Mr. Darmofalski said this shooting facility would be almost identical.  Mr. Juzdan 

 18



said there are no specs on this drawing.  Mr. Darmofalski said he understands that but part of 
the presentation they have this evening is a site plan and they have not heard from the site 
engineer yet.  The Board has not heard from the traffic engineer yet to talk about some 
particular issues.  But from a fitting out he does not think the Board normally hears about a 
complete fit out of a retail facility.  Mr. Juzdan said they are emphasizing so much that the 
air flow has to be a certain way and the thickness of the walls have to be so much.  This is 
not a grocery store and there is nothing on the plan that shows any of it.  Mr. Darmofalski 
said 10 years ago they had the same concerns and the Board asked the specifications be part 
of the record to make sure it is constructed accordingly if in fact the Board acts favorably. 
 
Mr. Dicristina said the current walls are not filled with concrete and asked what they would 
do.  Mr. Darmofalski said they will need to take the walls down or drill them and fill them.  
The whole structural part of the roof and the roof itself is all going to change because it 
cannot handle the baffling.  Mr. Juzdan said he strongly believes there should be something 
on the plan.  Mr. Darmofalski said he could give them a specification sheet for the record 
and to satisfy the Board’s concerns.  They will supply it to the Board for the next meeting.  
Mr. Darmofalski said he will discuss it with the architect and submit them to the Board.   
 
Craig Peregoy, traffic engineer, was sworn in.  He stated his qualifications and was accepted 
as an expert.   
 
Mr. Peregoy stated peak hours are in the evening between 4:00 & 6:00 p.m. and Saturday 
between 11:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m.  That is when you are going to see McBride Ave. at its 
busiest.  What he needs to project is how much traffic are they going to generate with what 
they are proposing during that time period.  He was not quite sure how to do that because the 
ITE manual that they reference does not have a firing range type of use in it.  So he decided 
there were 13 ranges and at the busiest hour there would be 13 people come in and 13 
people come out but he was told by the people with a lot more experience that they would 
not be that busy and there would be less that that even though that would be a fairly light 
traffic volume.  He thought about it more and what the ITE tells you is to use the closest use 
possible if it is doesn’t have the specific use.  He felt this was a similar use to a golf driving 
range because they are both specialized types of activities with fairly expensive equipment.  
You would have your own personal range but instead of hitting golf balls it would be a very 
similar type of thing.  The ITE data has for a golf driving range is the evening peak hour at 
17 if you have 13 golf driving ranges and 16 during Saturday.  Golf ranges usually has a pro 
shop in front that sells golf equipment so it is a very similar type of setup in this case.  
Obviously there are more items than just specific to shooting but the same goes for a golf 
store where you have shirts, apparel and umbrellas.  Typically who is attracted to that store 
are golfers.  You are looking at less than 20 trips in an hour and typically a 100 trips 
generates the need for a traffic report.  There was a furniture store in the space which 
probably generated more traffic.  You could also have a permitted retail use in that space 
that would generate much more traffic than the range.  From a traffic intensity standpoint 
this is a much lower intensity than what you could have and is not going to create any 
adverse impact to the roadway network.  He testified before the Woodland Park Planning 
Board when he did the medical building just north of Lackawanna.  So he did actually have 
traffic counts across the frontage of this site and he took a look at the capacity of this 

 19



driveway just to get an idea of what you could get going in and out of there.  The driveway 
has a capacity for 185 vehicles to exit, they are at 17 and there are a few other uses on the 
site that are also low generators.  So they certainly have the capacity for this driveway to 
work.  Normally they wouldn’t have that kind of information but since he had the data from 
the medical building available he figures he would share it with the Board to show there is 
certainly a comfort level in terms of traffic impact. 
 
PUBLIC Questions to the traffic engineer – PUBLIC CLOSED 
 
Mr. Fiorello asked what the peak hours were.  Mr. Peregoy said the evening hours would be 
17 trips and Saturday would be 16.  The peak hour is the one busiest hour between 4:00 p.m. 
& 6:00 p.m.  Saturday would be 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at 16 trips during the one busiest 
hour.   
 
Mr. Juzdan said let’s go back to Riverdale and asked if he knew how many people go into 
the Riverdale facility and when the peak is.  Mr. Peregoy said he shared this information 
with them and he said that is about what they are looking at.  Riverdale shares its parking lot 
with a softball field so it is a little difficult to know who is going where.   
 
Mr. Fiorello asked about parking on the site.  Mr. Peregoy said going with the golf driving 
range again he would look at 1 ½ spaces per driving range so there they have 13 so he would 
say 19 spaces would be plenty and they certainly have more than enough. 
 
Mr. Decesare asked if he took into consideration the parking for the karate school.  Mr. 
Peregoy said yes and the school is a lot of pickup and drop off so they are not necessarily 
occupying the spot for long.  Mr. Decesare asked about parking for the warehouses and 
other uses in the back.  Mr. Peregoy said the site engineer will give the Board more of a 
breakdown for parking.  There are 40+ spaces available there.  Mr. Decesare said that when 
he looked there were only about 15 spaces available in the front.   They will have to make 
spaces along the side and the site engineer will show that on his plan.   
 
The application will be carried until July 25, 2011 meeting. The applicant agrees to waive 
time with no further notice. 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Orlando, second by Ms. Patterson. All in favor.  
Meeting adjourned.   
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 20



 21

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
     
 
   
 


	 MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:30 P.M. by Vice Chairman Juzdan.  

